
 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 1 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

City of St. Helens 

Budget Committee  
Meeting Minutes    April 15, 2019 
 

 

Members Present:  Rick Scholl, Mayor 
    Doug Morten, Council President 
    Ginny Carlson, Councilor 
    Stephen R. Topaz, Councilor 
    Rachael Barry , Committee Member 
    Garrett Lines, Committee Member 
    Bill Eagle, Committee Member 
    Leah Tillotson, Committee Member 
 
Members Absent:  Keith Locke, Councilor 
    Brian Vaerewyck, Chair 
 
Staff Present:  Matt Brown, Finance Director 
    John Walsh, City Administrator  
    Jennifer Johnson, Accounting Assistant 
    Sue Nelson, Public Works Engineering Director 
    Margaret Jeffries, Library Director 
    Brian Greenway, Chief of Police  
 
  
       

6:00 P.M. - Call Meeting to Order 

 
1) Election of Budget Chair 
Morten  nominated Barry  for Chair.  
 
Motion: Upon Eagle’s motion and Scholl’s second, the Committee unanimously approved Barry  
for Chair. [Ayes: Scholl, Morten, Carlson, Barry , Lines, Tillotson, Topaz; Nays: None] 
 
2) Approval of Minutes from Previous Year  

2.A March 15, 2018 Minutes  
2.B April 5, 2018 Minutes  
2.C April 17, 2018 Minutes  
2.D May 3, 2018 Minutes  

 
Morten asked for an explanation on how the City ended up funding the Recreation Center. He 
mentioned it was left open. Brown said it started with a $20,000 grant from the Ford Family 
Foundation. A second grant was received for $25,000. These funds were used for initial salary 
costs of a Recreation Coordinator part-time as well as some recreation assistants. As those 
grants run out he would like to revisit funding for the program. The current Council discussion is 
a $2 fee on the utility bills.  

http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=5c2dd55b-ce43-4de7-b42a-8cf04bdff2df&time=147
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=d13d3347-b930-4385-b867-d60fb2f62162&time=212


 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 2 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

 
Brown discussed the Afterschool Program that was created and is self-funding at this point.  
 
Motion: Upon Scholl’s motion and Carlson’s second, the Committee unanimously approved the 
minutes for March 15, 2018, April 5, 2018, April 17, 2018, and May 3, 2018. [Ayes: Eagle, 
Morten, Carlson, Barry , Lines, Tillotson, Topaz; Nays: None]  
 
3) Update from Previous Year  
Brown reviewed the previous year’s opportunity items. The Public Works Job & Structure 
Review has not been started but is currently under discussion.  

 
 
4) Public Comment  
None.  
 
5) Additions to 2019/20 Budget  
Brown presented the 19/20 Budget Requests  

 
 

http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=3c83ca6c-9fbd-4389-8282-9824bbd1a8f5&time=791
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=eefad22a-2450-41eb-abc3-b2f0dd757a5c&time=997
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=7d1b737b-680e-4f79-a7d5-61c57495d36b&time=1032


 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 3 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

 

These items will be discussed at the next City Council meeting before being added to the 

budget.  Nelson clarified that they are looking for someone with some background in GIS and 

AutoCAD programs to also assist with inspections, as well as put together some streets 

projects. They are looking for a technician level person.  Tillotson asked if this positon would 

replace currant overtime usage. Nelson said no, there is no current overtime being spent.  

6) Budget Review- SDC FUNDS 
Brown presented the SDC Funds shown below. All the funds are appropriated incase a project 
comes up. Tillotson asked what the limitations are for SDC Funds spending guidelines. Nelson 
said the SDC funds have to increase capacity of whatever system they are being spent for.  
Those projects must be identified in a master plan. 

6.A Water SDC 

 
6.B Sewer SDC  

 
6.C Storm SDC 

 
 
6.D Streets SDC  

 
 
 

http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=b37c009e-ae84-4ddc-b4d7-48e8ea3524de&time=1390
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=45ed05f0-8d70-4a04-8fd7-2b5a4d0cf927&time=1411
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=e126e01e-4886-491d-b6c6-323b33bca1fe&time=1497
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=b9fad83e-f9f2-425f-817d-571614aca967&time=1499
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=64f6fa43-033b-49e5-9c6d-bb335b33740c&time=1502


 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 4 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

 
 
 
6.E Parks SDC  

 
Topaz asked what happens if there is a catastrophe. Brown explained that if you need more 

than is appropriated you could declare a State of Emergency to use any unappropriated fund 

balance, usually not SDC funds. Walsh said it depends on what the catastrophe is. Some might 

be covered by insurance.  Topaz asked how an earthquake that damages the cooling pond 

would be handled.  Morten said that would be earthquake insurance.  Barry  asked why money 

is budgeted but not spent. Brown said everything is appropriated to spend. It depends what 

projects are being done.  Some projects are only SDC eligible for a portion of the costs of the 

project. If the City does not have the matching portion for that project it has to wait.  

8) Budget Review- Internal Service Funds  
8.A Equipment  

 
Brown said the Equipment Fund is used for funding large equipment over $5000. Brown 

mentioned the City has signed a contract with Enterprise Fleet Management. They are currently 

working on replacing all of the Police vehicles as well as City Hall vehicles. Nelson mentioned 

one or two vehicles will also go on the the lease program.  

 

http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=981315f2-d899-48a2-b047-9a805f42ce12&time=2374
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=0eae18a0-72e8-4006-9412-0ae5d3ac69a4&time=2526


 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 5 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

 
 
 
 
8.B IT Services   

 
Brown said these funds are for our new IT person as well as Centerlogic. This also includes a 

computer replacement schedule.  Topaz asked if it is more secure to have an internal IT person 

as opposed to an outside company.  Brown said it is not feasible at this time to only have one 

internal IT person. Brown also mentioned we have IT insurance.  

 8.C PW Operations  

 
8.D Facility Major Maintenance  

 
Brown said some re-configurations with upstairs offices will be completed out of this fund. 

Some adjustments have been made with court and utility billing staff. Combining the two front 

offices would be more efficient. The Committee discussed adding an elevator to City Hall. 

http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=06821ed7-7fd9-4420-b8b8-b5c8bfa7b004&time=2673
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=019de57e-8e32-4c9e-a833-e73954241003&time=2917
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=ed1eb7d8-688f-42c4-9414-e1cf30525440&time=2925


 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 6 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

Carlson said there might be grant options for the elevator. Morten mentioned maintenance and 

inspection costs on an elevator.   

8.C PW Operations  
Brown charges water, streets, and storm for staffing and materials and services. It’s a split 
allocation. A Transfer of $835,000.00 was made to reimburse the Enterprise fund for funds that 
were not used in the prior year. That money was charged out to Enterprise funds. A lot of it is 
staffing either dropped off or was never hired on, creating extra funds available that Brown 
transferred to where it was originally allocated to.  
 
9) Budget Review- SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS  

9.A Streets  

 
Tillotson asked if sidewalks can be funded by STP. Nelson said yes, 50%, but don’t confuse this 

with SDC funds. The total available amount for STP funds is $600,000 but some has already 

been committed to other completed projects, around $200,000 and about $200,000 for the N. 

Vernonia Road. Project.  Brown said funding for streets is declining.  

Break 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=6643a14f-1e5c-4e3b-8a9c-fe18c2bf45ad&time=3817
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=5fccfcfb-7034-41b0-a8ff-2e0fe8406714&time=3912
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=9628f459-81d2-463d-882e-4361ef8cf98d&time=4335
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=6dd43d2a-1b3a-4322-8500-aed48ccd8c3d&time=4768


 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 7 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

9.B Community Development 
 

 
 

• The City expects to see $900,000 from a timber cutting planned.  

• A lot of planned professional services for the veneer plant property.  

• The Committee discussed wetlands in that area.  

10) Budget Review - ENTERPRISE FUNDS  
 Tillotson asked if the City could go off of the how much the population is growing to 

decide on how many workers are needed. Brown said it’s not a direct correlation. 
Opinions may differ in different departments. He believes the City should become more 
efficient as it grows, not necessarily hire more employees. Police may depend on call 
levels instead of population. Greenway agreed, calls for services not population. Data 
needs to show where we are at.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=0274036c-dc91-495a-bd2b-2a50ef26944d&time=4024
http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=c7761f26-deaa-4454-ac1b-62293aadec28&time=5569


 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 8 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

10.A Water 

 

 
 

Brown presented the Enterprise Funds. The Committee discussed the LED light replacement 
that was intended to save money.  
 
Topaz commented that some of the storm water was not put in when they isolated the sanitary 

sewer. He asked if that would be reinvestigated. Nelson said new storm drains were installed 

for the I&I project or improved the existing storm drainage. Topaz disagreed stating no they did 

not. Topaz said water ran all down St. Helens Street. He said there is no storm water collection 

between those two streets. Nelson said that they could take a look at that. She noted at the 

time of the project some of the property owners refused to provide an easement or did not feel 

they needed the additional storm drainage. Topaz referenced a sewer system from 1913 that 

was in that area. 

Scholl noted the awkward situation with Topaz being a City Councilor and having had a previous 

lawsuit with the City that was lost by Topaz. Scholl would like to move on from these types of 

discussions. 

The Committee reviewed Brown’s graphs which illustrate no increase in utility bills, as well as a 

graph that illustrates a 2% increase.  

 

 

 

http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=bdedcbe8-59f7-4eda-aa47-b949a41c43ed&time=7198


 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 9 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

10.B Sewer  

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 10 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

The top illustrates a 0% increase. The bottom illustrates a 2%.  
 
10.C Storm  
 

 
Scholl asked why Grey Cliffs and Walmart do not pay storm fees. Nelson commented there are 

a few commercial business, like Armstrong, Cascades, and Walmart that don’t drain their storm 

water into city storm drains therefore they don’t pay any storm fees.  It’s stated in the 

Ordinance that if you drain directly into a water source such as a creek or river you do not pay 

a storm fee.  Carlson commented that she can understand some frustration with residents 

paying for storm fees that could not get into their houses during the last storm we had with 

flooding. Morten asked if it would be feasible to put any of the storm projects on hold for a bit 

in our approach to solving this budget issue. Scholl is concerned with large businesses not 

paying any storm fee.  

Nelson is holding off on certain projects until the Storm Water Master Plan is redone. There may 

be some projects eligible for SDC funding.  

11) Adjournment – 8:30 p.m. 
 

 
 
 

http://sthelens.granicus.com/wordlinkreceiver.php?clip_id=1077142e-ff53-4483-84ce-c6d95a18185a&meta_id=51fc2985-8182-42af-baa0-b51ad2e9933a&time=7807


 
 

 

Budget Committee Meeting 4/15/19 Page 11 of 11 Approved 4/16/20 
 

 
Respectfully submitted by Jennifer Johnson, Budget Committee Secretary  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   ____________________________ 
Kathy Payne, City Recorder     Rick Scholl, Mayor 
 


